INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of TBO Cargo Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of TBO Cargo Private Limited
(“the company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in Equity and Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (‘Companies Act’ ) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, and total loss (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income) and its cash flow
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 37. of the accompanying financial statements, which describe the basis of
preparation of the financial statements. The Company has ceased its operations, and the financial
statements have been prepared on a basis other than Going Concern. Accordingly, the assets have
been stated at their estimated net realizable values and liabilities at their estimated settlement
amounts.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.




Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

The Director’s Report is not made available to us at the date of this Auditor’s Report. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the act read with the company (Accounting
standards) rules, 2021, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate of accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and designing, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls ,that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so, except given
in the “Matter of Emphasis” Paragraph.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Standalone financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern, except given in “Emphasis of Matter” Paragraph.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the "Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:




a)

b)

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive income)
, the statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with in this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31,2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone
financial statement and the operating effectiveness of such control referred to our separate
Report in "Annexure to” this Report.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2025.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its
Standalone financial statements-Refer Note 31 to the Standalone financial statements.

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2025.

c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

d) (i) The management has represented that, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities
(“intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented that, no funds have been received by the Company
from any persons(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
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f)

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. and

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement.

No Dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company.

Based on our examination, the company has used an accounting software for maintaining
its books of account. However, in the absence of adequate evidence of necessary controls
and documentation regarding whether audit trial feature is enabled for all relevant
transactions, we are unable to comment on the audit trial feature of the aforesaid software.
Accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the trial had operated throughout
the year or was tampered with, does not arise.

For AKGSR & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number:027579N

Angad Kumar

Partner

UDIN: 25527228BMIVNR3457
Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025



ANNEXURE - A
Annexure 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “"REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT ON EVEN DATE.

Re: TBO Cargo Private Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanation sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

(i) (@)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(i) (a)(B) According to the information and explanations to us and the records of the company
examined by us, the company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(i) (b) All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the
current year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three
years which is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
assets.

(i) (c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favourS of the lease), held by the
Company and accordingly, the requirements to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the order is
not applicable to the company.

(i) (d) The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant & Equipment (including Right
of Use Assets). Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the revaluation
is based on the valuation of Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the
change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of
Property, Plant & Equipment ( including Right of Use Assets) or intangible assets do not
arise.

(i) (e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(ii)(@) The company is in the business of rendering of services and consequently, does not hold
Any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable
To the company.

As disclosed in note 6 and 43(ix) to the standalone financial statements, the company
h\as not sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs. Five crore in aggregate from




banks on the basis of security of current assets of the company.
(iii).(a) The company has not granted unsecured loans to other parties (employees). The
aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with

respect to such loans are as per the table given below:-

Amount in Rs. Thousands

Guarantees | Security Loans Advances in nature
of loans
Aggregate amount granted/ - - - -
provided during the year

- Others (employees)
Balance outstanding as at - - - -
balance sheet date in respect
of the above case
- Other (employees)

(iii)(b) During the year the company has not provided loans and advances in the nature of loans
stood guarantee and provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(iii)(c) During the year the investments made , guarantees provided, security given and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans, investments and
guarantees to companies are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

(iii)(d) The company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report clause
3(iii)(c) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(iii)(e) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of the loans granted to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more
than ninety days.

(iii)(f) There are no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies which had fallen
due during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of provision of section
185 and 186 of Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the company.




which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the companies Act
and rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirements to report on
clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(vi) The central government of India has not specified for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order
is not applicable to the company.

(vii)(a) The company is usually regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees ' state insurance,
income-tax and other statutory dues applicable to it though there has been delay in few cases of
goods and services tax, provident fund, welfare fund and Income tax. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amount payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end,
for a more than six months from the date they become payable.

(vii)(b) There are no statutory dues of employees ' state insurance, goods and services tax and
provident fund which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) The company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during
the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the order is not applicable of
the Company.

(ix)(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks and a financial institution
during the year.

(ix)(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(ix)(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, no
funds raised on short term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix)(e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

(ix)(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on Clause
(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(xi)(b) During the course of the examination of the book and records of the company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under section
143(12) of the act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the
report under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

(xii)(a) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(xii)(b) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of the
section 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiv)(a) The Company does not have an Internal Audit System and is not required to have an
Internal Audit System under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report under the clause 3(xiv)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiv)(b) The Company does not have an Internal Audit System and is not required to have an
Internal Audit System under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report under the clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.




connected with the directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934 ( 3 of 1934) are
not applicable to the company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on the clause 3(xvi) of
order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

(xvi)(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs.20,300.59 Thousands in the financial year and
Rs.29,166.77 Thousands in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 42 to the standalone financial
statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge
of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which cause us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not assurance to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due to consistent Losses.

The financial statements have been prepared on a basis other than going concern as disclosed in
Note 37. of the financial statements.

(xx)(a) The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
der is not applicable to the Company.



(xx)(b) The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement of clause 3(xx)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we are of the opinion that material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
the Company will be able to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due during a period of one
year from the balance sheet date.

For AKGSR & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 0257579N

Angad Kumar

Partner

Membership No.: 527228
UDIN: 25527228BMIVNR3457
Place: Gurugram

Date: July 14, 2025




TBO Cargo Private Limited

CIN -U63000DL2020PTC370711

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Asgsets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 40.84 331.40
Right-of-use assets 4 = 11,129.68
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 6 - 202.88
Deferred tax assets (net) s - -
Other non-current assets 10 - 956.82
Total non-current assets 40.84 12,020.78
Current asscls
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 8 5,454.54 96,857.28
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 7,685.00 17,601.07
(iii) Loans 5 - 224.35
(iv) Other financial assets 6 420.00 -
Current tax assels 11 8,250.11 10,035.12
Other current assets 10 10,023.78 8,908.94
Total current assets 31,839.52 1,33,716.76
Total assets 31,880.36 1,45,737.54
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 12 5,000.00 5,000.00
Other equity 13 (86,583.16) (66,282.57)
Total equity (81,583.16) (61,282.57)
Liabilties
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 25 = 8,413.70
Employee henefit obligations 15 - 399.02
Total non-current linbilities - 8,812.72
Current liabilities
Tinancial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 25 - 4,383.08
(ii) Trade payahles 17

(a) total outstanding dues of miero and small enterprises 181.64 2,545.88

(b) total outstanding dues other than (ii){a) above 7,702.02 82,684.48
(iii) Borrowings 14(a) 1,04,711.21 1,06,573.16
(iv) Other financial liabilities 14(b) 778.79 1,302.33
Employee henefit obligations 15 - 16.29
Contract Liabilities 16(a) - 45.47
Other current liabilities 16(h) 89.86 636.70

Total eurrent liabilities

1,13,403.52

1,98,207.39

Total liabilities

1,13,463.52

2,07,020.11

Total equity and liabilities

31,880.36

1,45,737.54

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying \otes.
This is the Balanee Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For AKGSR & Co.
Firm registration number: 027579N

Angad Kumar
Partner
Membership number: 527228

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025

of Directors of

DIN: 09419464

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025



TBO Cargo Private Limited
CIN -U63000DL2020PTC370711

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2

(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

o2y

Notes For the year ended Tor the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income
Revenue from operations 18 13,436.42 16,748.69
Other income 19 3,510,70 455.52
Total income 16,947.12 17,204.21
Expenses
Employee benefils expense 20 10,425.37 14,835.19
Finance costs 21 9,209.77 9,758.20
Depreciation expense 22 1,733.54 2,110.80
Other expenses 23 9,579.03 19,666.73
Tolal expenses 30,947.71 46,370.98
Loss before exceptlional items and tax (14,000.59) (29,166.77)
Exceptional items 36 6,300.00
Loss before tax (20,300.59) (29,166.77)
Income tax expense
Current tax 24 5 =
Deferred tax 7 - -
Total tax expense - -
Loss for the year (20,300.59) (29,166.77)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 29 - (9.61)
Income tax relating to this item - -
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss = =
Income tax relating to this item - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax = (9.61)
Total comprehensive income for the year (20,300.59) (29,176.38)
Earnings per equity share - Basic and Diluted (in INR) 35 (40.60) (58.33)

(Face value of share - INR 10 each)

The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For AKGSR & Company
Firm registration number:

Angad Kamar
Partner :
Membership number: 52%

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025

DIN: 09419464

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025



TBO Cargo Private Limited

CIN -UG3000DL2020PTC370711

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities

Notes For the year ended
March 31, 2025

Tor the year ended
March 31, 2024

Loss before tax (20,300.59) (29,166.77)
Adjustments for:
Deprecialion expense 22 1,733.54 2,110.80
Unwinding of discount on seeurily deposits 19 (18.56) (18.41)
Gain on termination of leases 19 (2,166.05) =
Gain on termination of security deposit 19 (198.57) =
Net impairmenl losses on financial assets including trade receivables 23 942.08 8,562.63
Interest income on others 19 {404.05) (287.04)
Liability no longer required written back 19 (419.43) (63.57)
Net foreign exchange differences 20 - (76.30)
Provision for doubtful advances 23 641.82 1,320.00
Interest on borrowings 21 8,012.42 8,136.78
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues 21 41.38 283.64
Interest expense - lease liabilities 21 1,155.97 1,337.84
Exceptional items 36 6,300.00 -
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in trade receivables 90,460.66 (7,544.99)
Increase in other financial assels (198.56) -
Increase in other assets (7,609.84) (752.23)
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables (77,327.60) 36,402.24
Increase in Employee benefit obligations (34.08) 101.44
Increase/ (Decrease) in other finaneial liabilities (523.54) 4.08
Inerease in Contract Liabilities (45.47) 45.47
Decrease in olher current liabilities (546.84) 127.74
Cash flow from /(used in) operations (506.21) 20,523.35
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) 1,779.01 (1,933.45)
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating activities (A) 1,272.80 18,589.90
Cash flows from investing aclivitlics
Payments for property, plant and equipment 3 - (69.80)
Loans to employees & (274.35)
Repayment of loans by employees 224.35 130.00
Interest received 19 404.05 287.04
Net cash inflow from investing activities (B) 628.40 72.89
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings - 38,195.84
Repayment of borrowings (6,370.00) (36,195.84)
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues (41.38) (283.64)
Interest on borrowings (3,504.37) (4,156.87)
Principal elements of lease payments (745.46) (762.16)
Interest elements of lease payments 25 (1,155.97) (1,397.84)
Net cash (outflow)/ inflow from financing activities (C) (11,817.18) (4,540.51)
Netinerease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (9,915.98) 14,122.28
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 17,601.07 3,478.79
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 7,685.09 17,601.07
Significant Non Cash financing and investing activilics
Acquisition/(disposals) of right of use assets 4 (14,768.73) E
(14,768.73) =
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand - 013
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 7,685.09 17,600.94
Cash and cash equivalents 7,685.09 17,601.07
Balance as per Statement of Cash Flows 7,685.09 17,601.07

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunetion with the accompanying notes.
This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

For AKGSR & Co.
Firm registration number: o27579N

Angad Kxdmar
Partner X
Membership number: 527228

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025

DIN: 09419464

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025
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I) Equity Share Capital

Note Number of shares Amounts
Balance as at April 1, 2023 5,00,000 5,000.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 12 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5,00,000 5,000,00
Balance as at April 1, 2024 5,00,000 5,000.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 12 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 5,00,000 5,000.00
II) Other equity
Particulars Nole Retained earnings Total
Balance as at April 1, 2023 (37,106.19) (37,106.19)
Loss for the year (29,166.77) (29,166.77)
Other comprehensive income - net (9.61) (9.61)
Total comprehensive income (29,176.38) (29,176.38)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 13 (66,282.57) (66,282.57)
Balance as at April 1, 2024 (66,282.57) (66,282.57)
Loss for the period (20,300.59) (20,300.59)
Other comprehensive income - net = &
Total comprehensive income (20,300.59) (20,300.59)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 13 (86,583.16) (86,583.16)

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report.

For AKGSR & Co.

Angad Kdmar
Partner
Membership number: 527228

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025

DIN: 09419464

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 14, 2025
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General information

TBO Cargo Private Limited (the ‘Company’) was incorporated on September 30, 2020 and its registered office
located at Delhi, India. The Company has been incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Company is primarily in the business of cargo clearing and freight forwarding.

These Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors
on July 14, 2025.

1. Summary of material accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a basis other than going concern as the Company has
discontinued its operations. The management has assessed that the going concern assumption is no longer
appropriate due to continuous losses in existing business and lack of visibility of any new business
opportunities.

1.1. Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS'")
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of Companies Act
2013 (‘Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act and subsequent amendments thereto.

(b) Historical cost convention
These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value;
o defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value

(¢) Going concern

The Company incurred a total comprehensive loss of INR 20,300.59 thousands during the year ended March
21, 2025 and has accumulated losses of INR 86,583.16 thousands upto March 31, 2025. Further, subsequent
to the year ended March 31, 2025, the management has decided to close the operations of the Company.

Owing to above and lack of visibility of any new business opportunities, the sustainability of business of the
Company appears uncertain. Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared on the assumption
that the fundamental accounting assumption of going concern is no longer appropriate for the Company. All
the assets have been valued at net realisable value based on best estimates of management and liabilities have
been reflected at the values at which they are expected to be discharged.

1.2. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the performance obligation in the contract is satisfied by transferring control of
the promised services to a customer and is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits
will flow to the Company and revenue can be reliably measured.

A receivable is recognised when the performance obligations are satisfied as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due. A
contract liability is recognised if the entily receives consideration (or if it has the unconditional right to receive
consideration) in advance of performance obligations. Contract assets and liabilities related to rights and
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obligations in a contract are interdependent, and therefore are recorded net in the balance sheet. The netting
off rights are evaluated at contract level and not at performance obligation level. Company does present these
as net if they arise from different contracts that are not combined in accordance with Ind AS 115.

The Company acts as an agent of cargo suppliers like airlines and shipping companies and represent them in
sale of cargo transportation.

The main sources of revenue for the Company is markup income earned from customers for providing the
services. The Company has assessed its revenue based on five step model given under Ind AS 115, Revenue
from contracts with customers.

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Company acts as an agent in case of Income from cargo services as the Company does
not control any service provided by the supplier to the customer. The Company recognises its revenue as and
when the control is transferred. The performance obligations are satisfied on booking of cargo by the customer
through the company.

1.3. Leases
As a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. [However,
the Company has applied practical expedient not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments. Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the
case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

» uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Company, which does not have recent third party financing, and

» makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g., term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
. any initial direct costs, and

. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
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Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

1.4. Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business
and reflects Company’s unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of
time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant
tinancing components. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less loss allowance.

1.5. Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the assets, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Estimate of useful life
e Office equipment* 3 years
e  Furniture and fixture* 5 years
e Computer system 3 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity
expects to use the assets beyond the lease term.

*The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert which
are lower than those specified by Schedule TI to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage
of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss within other gains/(losses).
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1.6. Employee benefits

(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in
respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the balance sheet.

(b) Other long-term employee benefit obligations (such as compensated absences)

If the Company has liabilities for earned leave that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service, these obligations are measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the
end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the
appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
agsumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when
the actual settlement is expected to oceur.

(c) Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

e defined benefit plans such as gratuity
e defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement
of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included
in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments
are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.
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Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations and contribution to employee state insurance fund. The Company has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution
plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.

(d) Bonus plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has ereated a constructive obligation.

1A. Summary of other accounting policies

This note provides a list of other accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone financial
statements to the extent they have not already been disclosed as part of material accounting policy information
(refer note 1). These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

S

All other assets are classified as Non-current assets.
A liability is treated as current when it is:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

S G

All other liabilities are classified as Non-current liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle of an entity is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in the form of cash or cash equivalents. Where the entity’s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable, its
duration is assumed to be 12 months.

(b) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM).

Results of the operating segments are reviewed regularly by the Group’s executive officers comprising of
Executive Directors and Group Chief Financial Officer, which has been identified as CODM, to make decisions
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about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial
information is available. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of cargo clearing and freight
forwarding, however, in the context of Indian Accounting Standard 108 — Operating segments, this is
considered to constitute single reportable segment.

(¢) Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

The items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (that is, ‘functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
as at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate
prevalent, at the date of initial recognition (in case measured at historical cost) or at the date when the fair
value is determined (in case measured at fair value).

(d) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated based on the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate based on amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
(tax loss) and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(e) Impairment of assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(f) Investments and other financial assets
Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through
profit or loss), and
e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sale the financial asset.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the
Company classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in Other Income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses).
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.
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o Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’” cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive income (OCI), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item
in statement of profit and loss.

s Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its assets carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 26 details how the Company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach required by Tnd AS 109, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when

e The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
e retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where
the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of
the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Income recognition
Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within
other income. Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
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the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the
loss allowance).

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Tor the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(h) Trade payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition. Trade payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(i) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

(j) Provisions

Provisions for expenses are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are several similar obligations, the likelihood that an ouiflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.,

(k) Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in financial statements.

(1) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Normally at initial recognition, the
transaction price is the best evidence of fair value.

However, when the Company determines that transaction price does not represent the fair value, it uses inter-
alia valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
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to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy. This categorization is based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

s Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

Financial assets and financial liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at
the end of each reporting period.

(m) Contributed equity
Fquity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

(n) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing;:

e the profit attributable to owners of the Company
o by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in equity shares issued during the year if any.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account: '

e the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares, and

the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Diluted EPS is same as basic EPS as there are no potential equity shares.

2. Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s
accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be
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different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is
included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item
in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
o Estimation of defined benefit obligation

The accounting of employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefit requires the Company to use
assumptions. These assumptions have been explained in employee benefits note 29.

e Impairment of trade receivables

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Company’s existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period.

e Determination of lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods
after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended
(or not terminated).

Most extension options in office leases have been included in the lease liability, because the Company could
not replace the assets without significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Company becomes
obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the
control of the lessee.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

£
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Office TFurnilure and Compuler Total
Equipment Fixture System

Year ended March 31, 2025

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 261.36 214.05 1,265.98 1,771.39

Additions = - - -

Disposals (291.30) (214.05) (1,002.48) (1,507.89)

Closing gross carrying amount = - 263.50 263.50

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation 291.36 140.48 1,008.15 1,439.99

Depreciation charge during the year - 73.57 216.99 200.56

Disposals (291.36) (214.05) (1,002.48) (1,507.89)

Closing accumulated depreciation - - 222,60 222.60

Net carrying amount - - 40.84 40.84

Particulars Office Furniture and Compulter Total
Equipment Fixture System

Year ended March 31, 2024

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 291.36 214.05 1,196.18 1,701.50

Additions - - 69.80 69.80

Disposals - - - -

Closing gross carrying amount 291.36 214.05 1,265.98 1,771.39

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation 224.85 99.89 603.23 927.97

Depreciation charge during the year 66.51 40.59 404.92 512.02

Disposals " !

Closing accumulated depreciation 291.30 140.48 1,008.15 1,439.99

Net carrying amount = 73.57 257.83 33140

4 Right-of-use assets

Particulars Amount

Year ended March 31, 2025

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 14,768.73

Additions .

Disposals {14,768.73)

Closing gross earrying amount =

Accumulaled depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation 3,639.05

Depreciation charge during the year 1,442.98

Disposals (5,082.03)

Closing accumulated depreciation -

Net carrying amount =

Particulars . Amount

Year ended March 31, 2024

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 14,768.73

Additions =

Disposals Z

Closing gross carrying amount 14,768.73

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated depreciation 2,040.27

Depreciation charge during the year 1,598.78

Disposals 5

Closing nccumulated depreciation 3,630.05

Net carrying amount 11,129.68

Also, refer note 25 for corresponding lease liabilities.
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5 Loans

Current

Asat
March 31, 2025

Asal
March 31, 2024

Loan to employees - 224.35
Total Loans - eurrent - 224.35
Break-up of security details

Loan receivables considered good - Secured - -
Loan receivables considered good - Unsecured - 224.35
Loan receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Loan receivables - credit impaired - -
Total - 224,35

6 Other financial assets

Non-current

Asat
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Security deposits = 202.88

Total other financial assets - non current - 202.88

Current

Security deposits 420.00 =

Total other financial assets - non current 420.00 -
7 Deferrved tax assels Asat As at

Deferred tax asset(net)

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Total deferred tax assets

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable lo:

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Total

Deferred tax asscts
Lease liabilities

Provision for Gratuity
Total

Net deferred tax assets

Movement in deferred tax

Movement in net deferred tax assets

2,801.12
2,801.12

2,80L.12

2,801.12

Particulars Deferred tax linbilities Deferred tax asscts Net movement
Property, plant Right of use Lease liabilities| Provision for Total
and equipment assels Gratuity
At April 1, 2023 - 3,203.50 3,203.50 - -
Deferred tax assets: (Charged)/credited, Deferred tax liabilities: Charged/(credited)
- to statement of profit and loss = (402.38) (402.38) B -
- 1o other comprehensive income - - - - -
At March 31, 2024 s 2,801,12 2,801.12 - -
Deferred tax assets: (Charged)/eredited, Deferred tax liabilities: Charged/(credited)
- to statement of profit and loss - (2,801.12) =

- to other comprehensive income

(2,801.12) -

At March 31, 2025

Note: As at March 31, 2025, the Company is having net deferred tax assets amounting to INR 21,598.29 (March 31, 2024 : INR 16,359.14), comprising of deductible temporary differences,
brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation under tax laws. However, in absence of reasonable certainty of future profits available to utilise the Deferred tax assets, Deferred tax assels

have been recognised to the extent of deferred tax liabilities.




TBO Cargo Private Limited

CIN -U63000DL2020PTC370711

Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

8 Trade receivables
Unsceured

Trade receivables from contracts with customers - billed
Less: Loss allowance on trade receivables

As al
March 31, 2025

28,671.24
(23,216.70)

Asat
March 31, 2024

1,19,131.80
{22,274.61)

Total trade receivables

5:454-54

96,857.28

Break-up of security details

Trade receivables considered good - Secured
‘I'rade receivables considered good - Unsecured
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Asat
March 31, 2025

28,671.24

Asat
March 31, 2024

1,15,480.71

Trade receivables - credit impaired - 3,645.18
Total 28,671.24 1,19,131.89
Loss allowance on trade receivables (23,216.70) (22,274.61)
Total trade receivables 5:454:54 96,857.28
Loss allowance for trade receivables under simplified approach

As al As al

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Gross carrying amount — trade receivables

28,671.24

1,19,131.89

Add/ (Less): Changes in loss allowances due to
Created during the year
Write - offs

Loss allowance on trade receivables (23,216.70) (22,274.61)
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net) 5:454.54 96,857.28
Movement of loss allowance on Lrade receivables Amounl

As at April 1, 2023 13,774.61

8,500.00

As at April 1, 2024 22,274,61
Add/ (Less): Changes in loss allowances due to

Created during the year 942.09
Wrile - offs -
As at March 31, 2025 23,216.70

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally of jointly with any other person, nor from firms or private companies respectively in which any director isa
partner, a director or a member. Trade receivable are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 days. For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer to Note 28.

Trade veceivables ageing schedule

Particulars

Outstanding as on March 31

2025 from the invoice date®

Less Lhan 6 6 months - 1 year -2 years 2-3 years more than 3 ycars Total
months
Undisputed trade receivables
- Considered good 96.15 8,874.82 236,22 10,272.17 191.88 28,671.24
- Significant increase in credit risk - s = = = =
- Credit impaired - 5 = = = =
96.15 8,874.82 236.22 19,272.17 191.88 28,671,249
Less: Loss allowance on trade receivables (78.05) (7,987.34) (212.60) (14,746.83) (191.88) (23,216.70)
18.10 887.48 23.62 4:525:34 = 5:454.54
Disputed trade receivables
- Considered good - - - - & =
- Significant increase in credit risk - - - - o -
- Credit impaired z = - - -
Less: Loss allowance on trade receivables - - - = e =
Total 18.10 887.48 23.62 4,525-34 = 5:454:54

* For the purposes of presentation of the aging schedule, the invoice date has been considered as the due date by the Company. Accordingly, there are no "not due" invoices as al March 31, 2025,
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Oulstanding as on March 31, 2024 from the invoice date*

Particulars
Less than 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yeurs more than 3 years Total
months
Undisputed lrade receivables
- Considered good 94,716.36 1,135.59 19,442.88 191.88 - 1,15,486.71
- Significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
- Credit impaired - - - 3 B -
94,716.36 1,135.59 19,442.88 191.88 - 1,15,4806.71
Less: Loss allowanee on trade receivables (1,271.20) (452.94) {15,213.42) (191.88) = (18,629.43)
93,445.07 682,65 4,229.46 - - 96,857.28
Disputed trade receivables
- Considered good - - - - - -
- Significant increase in credit risk - - - = + -
- Credit impaired - 25.31 3,619.87 - - 3,645.18
= 25.31 3,619.87 G i 3,045.18
Less: Loss allowance on trade receivables = (25.31) (3.619.87) = - (3,645.18)
Tolal 03,445.07 682.65 20,46 - - 96,857.28

* For the purposes of presentation of the aging schedule, the invoice date has been considered as the due date by the Company. Accordingly, there are no "not due” invoices as al March 31, 2024,

9 Cash and cash equivalents

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Cash on hand = 0.13
Balances with banks

- in current accounts 7,685.09 17,600.94
Total cash and cash equivalents 7,685.09 17,601.07

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as al Mareh 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

10 Other assets

Non-current

As at
Mareh 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2025

Prepaid expenses - 356.82
Total other non-current asscts - 3506.82
Current
Prepaid expenses - 482.65
Balance with government authorities
- GST credit receivable 15,982.94 8,134.10
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (refer note 36) (6,300.00) -

9,682.04 8,134.10
Advances to suppliers 2,302,066 1,702.10
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (1,961.82) (1,320.00)

340.84 382.19
Total other current asscts 10,023.78 8,998.94
11 Current tax assets
As at As at
March 31, 2025 NMarvch 31, 2024

Advance income tax 8,256.11 10,035.12
Total current tax assels 8,256.11 10,035.12
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As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

12 Equity Share Capital

Authorised equity shave capital
March 31, 2025 - 500,000 equity shares of INR 10 each (March 31, 2024 - 500,000 equily shares of INR 10 each) 5,000.00 5,000.00

Issued, Subseribed and Paid-up:
March 31, 2025 - 500,000 equity shares of INR 10 each (March 31, 2024 - 500,000 equity shares of INR 10 each) 5,000.00 5,000.00

5,000.00 5,000.00

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at March 31, 2025 As at Mareh 31, 2024
Number of Amount Number of Amount
Equity shares
Number of shaves at beginning of the year 5,00,000 5,000.00 5,00,000 5,000.00
Number of share at the end of the year 5,000,000 5,000.00 5,00,000 5,000.00

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
Equity shares have a par value of INR 10 per share (March 31, 2024: INR 10 per share). They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to shave in the proceeds of winding up the company in
proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to
one vote,

(¢) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

As al March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of % Holding Number of % Holding
Equity shares held hy:
TBO Tek Limited* 5,00,000 100.00% 5,00,000 100.00%
5,00,000 100.00% 5,00,000 100.00%
(d) Disclosure of shareholding of promoters:
As al March 31, 2025 As al March 31, 2024
Number of % Holding % ehange during Number of % Holding % change during
shares the year shares the year
Equity shares held by:
TBO Tek Limited* 5,00,000 100.00% 0.00% 5,00,000 100.00% 0.00%
5,00,000 100.00% 0.00% 5,00,000 100.00% 0,00%

* including 1 share held by nominee shareholder on behalf of the shareholder.
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13

14(a)

14(b)

Other equity

Retained earnings

Asat
March 31, 2025

(86,583.16)

As at
March 31, 2024

(66,282.57)

Total other equity

(86,583.16)

(66,282.57)

Retained earnings

Opening balance

Asat
March 31, 2025

(66,282.57)

As at
March 31, 2024

(37,106.19)

Loss for the year ) (20,300.59) (29,166.77)
Other comprehensive income (net) = (9.61)
Closing balanee (86,583.16) (66,282.57)
Borrowings

As at As at

Non-current
Unsecured loan from related party
Loan from holding company

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Total other non-current financial liabilities

Current
Unsecured loan from related party
Loan from holding company

1,04,711.21

1,06,573.16

‘T'otal other current financial liabilities

1,04,711.21

1,06,573.16

The Company has received a loan from its holding Company (TBO Tek Limited) for general working capital purposes initially repayable at the end of 2 years ending December 31, 2022,
During the previous year, the term has increased and now the loan is repayable on April 18, 2024, The loan carries an annual interest at the rate of 8.00% per annum (As at March 31,
2023 : 8,00% per annum), payable semi-annually. Such interest shall be paid within 3 months of being accrued. Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has
entered into addendum to loan agreement to increase the lerin of loan to 3 years from April 18, z024.

Net debt reconeilintion

Asal As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 7,685.09 17,601.07
Borrowings (1,04,711.21) (1,06,573.16)
Lease liabilities - (12,796.78)
Net Debt (97,026.12) (1,01,768.87)
Particulars Other assets Liabililies from financing activities Total

Cash and cash Lease liabilities Borrowings
equivalents
Net debt as on April 1, 2024 17,601.07 (12,796.78) (1,06,573.16) (1,01,768.87)
Cash flows (9,915.98) 044.03 1,861.95 (7,110.00)
New leases (net of disposals) - 11,852.75 11,852.75
Interest expense = (1,155.97) (8,012.42) (9,168.39)
Interest paid - 1,155.97 8,012.42 9,168.39
Net debt as on March 31, 2025 7,685.00 - (1,04,711.21) (97,026.12)
Particulars Other assels Liabilities from financing activities Total
Cash and cash Lease liabilities Borrowings
equivalents
Net debt as on April 1, 2023 3.478.79 (13,558.94) (1,00,593.25) (1,10,673.40)
Cash flows 14,122.28 762.16 (2.00) 14,882.44
New leases (net of disposals) Z E = -
Interest expense - (1,337.84) (8,136.78) (9,474.62)
Tnterest paid E 1,337.84 2,158.87 3,4906.71
Net debt as on March 31, 2024 17,601.07 (12,706.78) (1,06,573.16) (1,01,768.87)
Other financial liabilities
Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Payable to employees 778.79 1,302.33
‘Total other current financial liabilities 778.79 1,302.33
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15 Employee benefit obligations
Refer note 29 for employee benefits

Non-current

Asal Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Provision for Gratuity - 309.02
Total Employee benefit obligalions - Non-eurrent - 399.02
Current Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for Gratuity - 1.30
Provision for Leave encashment - 34.99
Tolal Employce benefit obligations - Current - 36.29

The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for earned leave,

The entire amount of provision as at March 31, 2025 - INR Nil and March 31, 2024 - INR 34.99 is presented as current, since the company does not have any unconditional right to
defer settlement for any of these obligations beyond 12 months from the reporting date. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to avail the full
amount of accrued leave or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months.

Leave obli

not expected to be settled within the next 12 months

= 27.86

16(a) Contract liabilities

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Conlracl liabilities - 45.47
Total Contract liabilities- Current - 45.47

Significant changes in contract liabilities

Contract liabilities consist of advance from customers - March 31, 2025: INR 63.57 and March 31, 2024: INR 45.47, which refers to advance received [rom customers for freight
forwarding services. The Company acts as an agent in such cases, henee, only a part of this advance i.e. Commission income from such advance will be transferred to revenue. Given the
nature of transactions, it is impracticable for the Company to delermine the amount which should be transferred to revenue for each year.

16(b) Other liabilities

Current
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source

As at As at
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024

89.86 636.70

‘Total other liabilities - Current

89.86 636.70

17  Trade payables

Current

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises**

Dues to enterprises other than Micro and Small Enterprises
- Others

- Related parties (Refer note 30)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Total trade payables

181.64 2,545.88
6,419.79 81,805.47
1,282.23 870.01

7,883.66 85,230.36
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#* Disclosures under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) based on the information available with the Company:

Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 2 2,403.78
remaining unpaid as at year end

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 39.53 54.60
unpaid as at year end

Prineipal amounts paid Lo suppliers registered under the MSMED Act beyond 2,803.02 3,220.56
the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the - -
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers - =
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - -
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

Interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 181.64 142.10

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - -
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of MSMED Act

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

Particulars Qutstanding as on March 31, 2025 from the invoice date*

Unbilled Upto 1 year More than 1 year Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 181.64 - - 181.64
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 710.00 6,992.02 - 7,702.02
enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - = = -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - ; = = -
Total 801.64 6,092,02 - 7,883.66

* For the purposes of presentation of the aging schedule, the invoice dale has been considered as the due date by the Company. Accordingly, there are no "not due” invoices as at March

31, 2025.
Particulars Quistanding as on March 31, 2024 from the invoice date*

Unbilled Upto 1 year More than 1 year Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 142,10 2,403.78 - 2,545.88
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 997.63 81,505.97 180.88 82,684.48
enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - = -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - -
Total 1,139.73 83,000.75 180.88 85,230.36

* For the purposes of presentation of the aging schedule, the invoice date has been considered as the due date by the Company. Accordingly, there are no "not due” invoices as at March
31, 2024.
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18

i)

iii)

19

20

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

Revenue from operations

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Revenue from contract with customers 13,436.42 16,748.69
Total revenue from operations 13,436.42 16,748.69
Disaggregated revenue information For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:
Type of services

March 31, 2024

Rendering of services
i) Freight and forwarding services 13,436.42 16,748.60
Total revenue from operations 13,436.42 16,748.69

The performance obligations are part of contracts that have an original expected duration of less than one year. Therefore, the Company has used the practical expedient Lo

not disclose the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations,

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price:

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

Contract Price 13,436.42

For the year ended
March 31, 2024
16,748.69

Revenue from operations 13,436.42

16,748.69

The table below represents disaggregated revenues from contract with customers by the timing of transfer of services:

For the year ended
i March 31, zoz5

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Services transferred at point in time 13,436.42 16,748.69
Revenue from operations 13,436.42 16,748.69
Other income For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Interest income on others 404.05 287.04
Unwinding of discount of security deposits 18.56 18.41
Gain on termination of leases 2,166.05 -

Gain on termination of security deposit 198.57 =

Net foreign exchange differences 304.04 86.50
Liability no longer required written back* 419.43 63.57
Total other income 3,510.70 455.52

* Includes INR 400.32 on account of written back of gratuty provision (refer note 29).

Employee benefits expense For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Salaries, bonus, allowances and benefits 9,913.51 13,875.31
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 29)* - 322,80 591,23
Gratuity (Refer note 29) - 163.56
Staff welfare expenses 189.06 205.09
Total employee benefits expense 10,425.37 14,835.19
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21 Finance costs

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest expense - lease liabilities (Refer note 25) 1,155.97 1,337.84
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues 41.38 283.64
Interest on borrowings 8,012.42 8,136.78
Total finance costs 9,209.77 9,758.26

23 Depreciation expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 200.56 512.02
Depreciation on Right of use assets 1,442.98 1,598.78
Total depreciation expense 1,733.54 2,110.80

23 Other expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Legal and professional 4,154.77 4,205.04
Provision for expected credit loss 942,08 8,500.00
Bad debts written off - 62.63
Travelling 677.70 894.72
Communication 120.04 139.14
Rent = -
Power and fuel 403.21 403.21
Rales & taxes 48713 789.20
Repairs & Maintenance 16.54 20.91
Advertising and marketing expenses 353.00 1,202.35
Provision for doubtful advances 641.82 1,320.00
Bank charges 3145 47.95
Office expense 55.44 246,20
Auditors remuneration (refer note (a) below) 250.00 822.08
Membership and subseription 769.91 487.86
Insurance 462.95 349.51
Miscellaneous expenses 181.43 176.03
Total other cxpenses 9,579.03 19,666.73

(a) Auditors remuneration comprises (excluding Goods and Services Tax) :

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

As auditor:

Statutory audit fee 250.00 800.08

Reimbursement of out of pocket expense - 22.00
250.00 822,08

24 Income tax expense

Current tax
Deferred tax

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Income tax expense

(a) Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit

Loss before income tax expense
Tax at the Indian tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2024 - 25.168%
(Year ended March 31, 2023 - 25.168%)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deduetible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation for which no deferred tax is recognised
Deductible temporary differences on which no deferred tax is recognised

Others

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

(14,000.59)
(3,523.67)

3,742.04
(218.37)

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(29,166.77)
(7,340.69)

4,562.67
2,769.32
8.70

Income tax expense
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25 Leases

This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee. The Company majorly leases office space. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 2 years to

9 years, but may have extension options.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of lease contracts. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the

Company’s operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable mutually by the company and the respective lessor.

Amountis recognised in balance sheet

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
» the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

« any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, if applicable; and

« any initial direct costs, if applicable.

Right-of-use assets As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Buildings (refer note 4) - 15,120.68
Total right-of-use assels - 11,120.68
Lease liabilities As at As al

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current - 4,383.08
Non current - 8.,413.70
Total lease liabilities - 12,796.78

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

Deprecialion on right-of-use assets

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Buildings (refer note 4)

1,442.98

1,598.78

Total depreciation on right-of-use assets

1,442.98

1,598.78

Expense in relation to lease liabilities

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest expense (ineluded in finance costs) . 1,155.97 1,337.84
Expense relating to short term leases ~ =
Total expense in relation to leases 1,155.97 1,337.84

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less. The total cash outflow for leases for the year was INR 2,100.00 (for the year ended March 31, 2024- INR 2,100.00), No asset comprises of low valie

asset,
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26 Financial risk management

(A)

(B

~

The Company’s principal finaneial liabilities comprise of borrowings, trade payables, lease liabilities and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
provide finance lo the Company to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and Cash and cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, eredit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks, The Company’s senior
management ensures that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that finaneial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordanee with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

Credil risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counler party resulting in a financial loss, For banks and financial instilutions, only independent parties with
good credit rating are accepted.

The Company assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position and other factors. Individual visk limits are set based on internal or
external ralings in accordance with limits set by the board. The compliance with credit limits by wholesale customers is regularly monitored by line management.The
maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are majorly unsecured and are derived from contracts with
customers, The Company has used the expected eredit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain on trade receivables, and has provided it wherever appropriate,

All of the entity's loans measured at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12
months’ expected losses. Management considers instruments to be low credit risk when they have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term (for example, investment grade credit rating with at least one major rating agency).

While cash and cash equivalents and sceurity deposits are also subject to the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109, the identified impairment loss was immaterial,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. The Company’s objective is to at all
times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and liquidity requirements, The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and maintains adequate source
of financing, if required, through the use of short term bank deposits, demand loans, commerecial credit cards and cash credit facility, Processes and policies related to such
risks are overseen by senior management.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities:

Contractual maturities of finaneial liabilities: (undiscounted)

Less than 1 year 1to 5 years More than 5 years Total
As at March 31, 2025
Lease liabilities & - = -
Trade payables 7,883.66 - - 7,883.66
Borrowings 1,04,711.21 & - 1,04,711.21
Other current financial liabilities 778.79 - - 778.79
Total 1,13,373.66 - - 1,13,373.66
As at March 31, 2024
Lease liabilities 2,118.00 12,449.33 4,139.43 18,706.76
Trade payables 85,230.36 - - 85,230.36
Borrowings 1,06,573.16 - - 1,00,573.16
Other current financial liabilities 1,302.33 - - 1,302.33

Total 1,95,223.85 12,449.33 4,139.43 2,11,812.61
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprises three
types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk, Financial instruments affected by market risks
majorly includes foreign eurrency receivables and payables. The sensitivity of the relevant profit and loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market
risks,

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect Lo the trade receivables and payables. Foreign exchange
visk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the component’s functional currency.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR thousands, are as follows

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Amount in INR Amount in INR
Financial assets
Trade receivables
ush - 6,586.24

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

EUR - o
usp = -

Sensitivity
The following table demonstrate the sensitivily to a 1% change in foreign currency exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.

(Inerease)/ Decrease in loss before tax*
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
USD against INR
Strengthening - 65.86
Weakening - (65.86)

* ITolding other variables constant
Capital management
(a) Rislk management

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company and all other equity reserves. The primary
objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize sharcholder value, The Company manages its
capilal structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,
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a) Financial instruments by category

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Amortised cost FVPL Fvoct” Amortised cost FVPL’ FVOCI

Financial assets

Trade receivables 5:454.54 - 06,857.28 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 7,685.00 - 17,601.07 - -
Loans - - 224.35 - -
Other financial assets 420.00 - 202.88 - -
Total financial assets 13,559-063 - 1,14,885.58 - -
Financial liabilities

Trade payables 7,883.606 - 85,230.36 - -
Borrowings 1,04,711.21 - 1,06,573.16 - -
Other financial liabilities 778.79 - 1,302.33 - -
Total financial liabilities 1,13,373.66 - 1,93,105.85 - -

Financial assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost

As of March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, fair value of loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalent, other current financial liabilities, borrowings and trade

payables approximate their carrying amount largely due to the short term nature of these instruments.

*TVPL - Fair value through profit or loss
*2pVOCI - Fair value through other comprehensive income
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29 Employee benefits

()

(b)
A,

Details of changes and obligation under the gratuily plan is given as below:-

I

®
(i1)
(iii)

11

@
(i)
(iif)

I

®

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
)

i)
(vii)

v

(1)
(iii)

0]
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
)

Defined contribution plan and amounts recognised in the statement of profit

Contribution to provident fund
Contribution to Employee State Insurance scheme

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

‘I'he Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employec who has completed five years or more

salary) for each completed year of service.

Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost

Nel expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Remeasurement of (Gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions

Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments

Net (gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income

Changes in obligation during the year

Opening balance

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Remeasurements

Benefits paid

Present value of obligation as at year end

Net liabilities recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Net liabilities recognised in the balance sheet

- Current
- Non current

Experience adjustment

Experience adjustment Loss/ (Gain) on plan labilities

Principle actuarial assumptions

Discount rate (per annum)
Salary growth rate (per annum)
Mortality

Retirement age

Withdrawal rate (Per Annum)

For the year ended Mareh  For the year ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024

298,07 504.91
24.73 4118

of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn

For the year ended March For the year ended March

31, 2025 31, 2024
(400.32) 146.52
- 17.04
(400.32) 163.56

Tor the year ended March For the year ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024

- 2.83
- 6.78

n 9.61

For the year ended March  For the year ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024

400,32 227.15
(400.32) 146.52
- 17.04

g 9.61

- 400.32

As at Asal
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
- 400.32

= 1.30
L 399.02

Tor the year ended March  For the year ended Mareh
31, 2025 31, 2024

= 6.78

For the year ended March  Tor the year ended March

31, 2025 31, 2024
NA 7.50%
NA 6%
NA TALM 2012-14
NA 60 years
NA 19.00%
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IX

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:

(Increase) / decrease on present value of defined benefits obligations at the end of the year

For the year ended March
31, 2025

For the year ended March
31, 2024

Discount Rate
Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

Salary Increase
Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

Withdrawal Rate
Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

17.25
(18.79)

(18.83)
17.62

8.37

(8.38)

Sensitivity due to mortality and attrition are not material and hence, impact of change due to these assumptions are not caleulated,

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
o to1year - 1.30
1to 2 year - 5.69
2 1o 3 year - 21.69
3 to 4 year - 21.98
4 to 5 year - 21,78
5 year onwards - 327.88

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reperting period is Nil (March 31, 2024 : 20 years).

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation are after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is as certified by the Actuary.

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key

assumptions oceurring at the end of the reporting period.

The above sensitivity analyses ave based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in
some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present
value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calenlating the defined

benefit liability recognised in the balance sheel.
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(a)

(b)

Related party disclosures:

Name of related party and related party relationship

Holding Compay

Key Management Personnel (KMP) and their relatives
(with whom transactions have taken undertaken during the year)

TBO Tek Limited

(i) Mr. Vijay Guleria - Director
(ii) Mr., Aarish Khan - Director
(iii) Mr. Khwaja Abdul Hameed - Director

Details of related parly lransactions and balances outstanding are as follows :

Transactions entered during the year

Loan received
Holding company
TBO Tek Limited

Loan repayment
Holding company
TBO Tek Limited

Interest on borrowings
Holding company
TBO Tek Limited

Reimbursement of expenses to**
Holding company
TBO Tek Limited

#* pertains to reimbursement of other expenses.

Balance as at year end

Borrowings
Holding company
TBO Tek Limited

Trade payables
Holding company
TBO Tek Limited

For the year ended

March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

- 38,195.84
6,370.00 36,105.84
8,012.42 8,136.78

403.22 403.22
As at Asat

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

1,04,711.21

1,282.23

1,06,573.16

879.01
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@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Analytical ratios

Particulars

Current ratio®

(Current assets / Currnet liabilities)

Debt-equity ratio”

(Total Debt’' / Total equily)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio
(Earnings available for debt service® / Debi Service?® )

Return on Equity (ROE)**
(Loss for the year / Average total equity ? )

Net capital turnover ratio®

(Revenue from operations / Working Capital®)

Net profit ratio

(Loss for the year / Revenue from operations)

Return on capital employed**
(Earning before interest and taxes® / Capital Employed”)

Explanation on variance above 25%:
% Due to decrease in current assets are more as compared to current liabilities.

# Total equity has decreased in current year due to loss for the year, due to which the ratio of Debt equity has been substantially changed compared to previous

year.

March 31, 2025

0.28

(1.28)

(4.07)

28.42%

(0.16)

-151.09%

5.87%

** There is increase in losses in current year along with decrease in capital employed.

Debt represents lease liabilities and borrowings

Earnings available for debt service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses (depreciation and Provision for expected credit loss) + Interest +

Debt Service = Interest on borrowings and Lease payments for the current year

(Opening total equity + Closing total equity)/2

Working capital = Total current assets - total current liabilities

Earning before interest and taxes = loss for the year/period + Income tax expense + Finance cost

Capital employed = Total equity +/(-) deferred tax liabilities/(assets) + Lease Liabilities

Notes:
1
2
other adjustments, if any
3
4 Average total equity
5
6
7
8

Trade receivable turnover ratio and trade payable turnover ratio have not been disclosed as these ratios are not relevant considering the operation and

business nature of Company.

March 31, 2024

0.67

(1.95)

(3.52)

62.46%

(0.26)

-174.14%

40.03%

Variance

-140.41%

-51.76%

13.60%

-119.78%

-57.77%

-15.26%

-581.66%
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32 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III:

Q)]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

The Company has not been declared willul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or governiment or any government authority.

The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 during the year ended March 31,
2025 and March 31, 2024.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, sceurity or the like to or on behalf of the ullimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1061, that
has not been recorded in the books of account.

The Company has not traded or invested in erypto currency or virtual enrrency during the current or previous year.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or
previous year.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee), as disclosed in note(s) to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
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33 Contingent Liabilities and commitments

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income lax demand = 630.29
Total Conlingent Liabilities - 630.29
S.no. Income tax demand As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 The Company received order u/s 154 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 on May 26, 2023 for| - 121.38

Assessment Year 2021-22, wherein the Income Tax Authority raised a demand of INR 121.38
thousands while originally the Company filed the return for Refund of INR 121.38 thousands.

2 The Company received order u/s 154 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 on April 08, 2024 for| - 508.91
Assessment Year 2022-23, wherein the Income Tax Authority raised a demand of INR 509.91
thousands while originally the Company had filed the return for Refund of INR 509.91
thousands,

Commitments
The Company does not have any commitments as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

34 Segment Information
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of cargo clearing and freight forwarding, The Company's chiel operaling decision makers are the executive
directors within the meaning of IND AS 108 'Operaling segmenls'. CODM examines the Company's performance, reviews internal management reports, and allocales
resources based on analysis of various performance indicators of the Company as a single unit ie. cargo clearing and freight forwarding. Therefore, there is no
reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of IND AS 108 "Operaling segment".

No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company's total revenue for the period ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

All the non-current assets are located in India,

35 Earnings per share

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Net loss for calculation of basic and diluted EPS (20,300.59) (20,166.77)
(b) Weighted average number of equity shares of INR 10 each 5,00,000 5,00,000
(c) Basic and diluted EPS* (40.60) (58.33)
Loss altributable Lo the equily holders of the Company used in calculating basic and diluted EPS (20,300.59) (29,166.77)
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator in calculating basic and diluted EPS 5,00,000 5,00,000

* Diluted EPS is same as basic EPS as there are no potential equity shares.

36 Exceplional ilems ave disclosed separately in the financial statements due to their size, nature, or oceurrence, For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has
made a provision of INR 6,300.00 lowards GST eredit receivables from government authorities. The provision has been made for the portion of input tax credit
where eligibility under GST law is currenily being evaluated. Further, the Company is in the process of filing the GST refund application with the relevant
authorities.

37 The Company incurred a total comprehensive loss of INR 20,300.59 thousands during the year ended March 31, 2025 and has accumulated losses of INR 86,583.16
thousands upto March 31, 2025, Further, subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2025, the management has decided to close the operations of the Company.

Owing to above and lack of visibility of any new business opportunilies, the sustainability of business of the Company appears uncertain. Consequently, these
financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the fundamental accounting assumption of going concern is no longer appropriate for Lhe
Company. All the assets have been valued at net realisable value based on hest estimates of management and liabilities have been reflected at the values at which
Lthey are expected to be discharged.
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